IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

CHARLIE HONEYCUTT

APPELLANT

V.

CAUSE NO. 2010-CA-01470

TOMMY M. COLEMAN, ATLANTA CASUALTY COMPANIES, ATLANTA CASUALTY COMPANY, AND AMERICAN PREMIER INSURANCE COMPANY

APPELLEES

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF LOWNDES COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

ORAL ARGUMENT REQUESTED

JOSEPH E. ROBERTS, JR. (MSB PITTMAN, GERMANY, ROBERTS & WELSH, L.L.P. POST OFFICE BOX 22985 JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 39225-2985

COUNSEL FOR THE APPELLANT, CHARLIE HONEYCUTT

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS

I. STATEMENT OF ISSUES

The Circuit Court erred in granting summary judgment finding that there was no uninsured motorist coverage available to Honeycutt.

The Circuit Court erred in granting summary judgment on behalf of Tommy

Coleman finding the actions of Coleman in the motor vehicle accident were

subject to the Mississippi Tort Claims Act.

II. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. COURSE OF PROCEEDINGS AND DISPOSITION OF THE COURT BELOW:

This cause of action arises from a motor vehicle accident which occurred on May 15, 1994 in Columbus, Lowndes County Mississippi when a vehicle in which Honeycutt was a passenger was struck by a vehicle being operated by Tommy Coleman [Coleman]. A Complaint was filed on April 16, 2001 against Coleman, Atlanta Casualty Companies, Atlanta Casualty Company and American Premier Insurance Company who were Honeycutt's uninsured motorist carriers [R8]. On July 6, 2001, Atlanta Casualty Companies, Atlanta Casualty Company and American Premier Insurance Company (hereinafter collectively referred to as "the

Insurance Company Defendants") filed their Answer and Affirmative Defenses. On August 15, 2001, Coleman, filed his Motion to Dismiss claiming that Honeycutt's claims were barred by the applicable statute of limitations and that Coleman was an improper party under *Miss. Code Ann.* §11-46-7(2) [R21]. Plaintiff filed his Response to the Motion to Dismiss on August 20, 2003 [R26]. In the Response to Motion to Dismiss, Honeycutt alleges,

Even if it were to be determined that the Defendant was acting within the course and scope of [his duties as a highway patrolman] which is a factual issue, Miss. Code Ann. §11-46-7(2) provides that for the purposes of that chapter, an employee shall not be considered acting within the course and scope of his employment, if the employee's conduct constituted. . . a criminal offense. Therefore, even if the Defendant was acting within the course and scope of his employment of the State of Mississippi at the time of the automobile accident, such fact would not bar this action from proceeding against the Defendant in that the allegations are that the Defendant committed a violation of the traffic laws of the State of Mississippi and the allegations of the Complaint provide that the Defendant's actions evidence a reckless disregard of the safety and well being of the Plaintiff [R28].

Coleman filed his Reply to Plaintiff's Response to the Motion to Dismiss on August 21, 2003 [R33]. On October 15, 2003, Honeycutt took the depositions of Coleman [R44] and David Humphries [R56], who is another highway patrol officer. On February 9, 2005, Honeycutt filed his Supplemental Response to Defendant Tommy M. Coleman's Motion to Dismiss [R41]. On February 10,

2005, Coleman filed his Supplementation to Defendant Coleman's Motion to Dismiss [R68]. On March 16, 2005, the court entered its Order granting Summary Judgment¹ to Coleman on the grounds that Plaintiff's claims were barred by the one year statute of limitations set forth in *Miss. Code Ann.* §11-46-11(3) [R136].

On October 31, 2008, the Insurance Company Defendants filed their Motion for Summary Judgment alleging that Honeycutt's parents, who were the named insureds on the policies of insurance, had rejected uninsured motorist coverage. On December 2, 2008, Honeycutt filed his Response to the Itemization of Facts in Support of the Motion for Summary Judgment [R182] and filed his Response to the Motion for Summary Judgment [R185]. On May 6, 2010, Honeycutt submitted depositions in support of his Response [R207]. On May 25, 2010, Honeycutt filed his Memorandum Brief in Opposition to Motion for Summary Judgment [R247]. On May 7, 2010, the Insurance Company Defendants filed their Rebuttal Memorandum in support of Defendant's Motion for Summary Judgment [R 233].

On March 6, 2009, an Agreed Judgment of Dismissal as to Punitive

Damages claims was entered [R203]. On August 24, 2010, the court entered its

¹Coleman's Motion to Dismiss was converted by the Circuit Court to a Motion for Summary Judgment because the court considered evidence outside of the pleadings. [R136]

Order granting the Insurance Company Defendants' Summary Judgment [R273].

On September 8, 2010, Plaintiff filed a Notice of Appeal as to the Judgment of
Dismissal as to all claims against Tommy M. Coleman and the Order sustaining
the Motion for Summary Judgment for the Insurance Company Defendants and the
Final Judgment of Dismissal with Prejudice entered in this cause on September 27,
2010 [R279].

B. FACTS

This cause of action arises as a result of a motor vehicle accident which occurred on May 15, 1994, wherein Honeycutt sustained serious and life threatening injuries. Honeycutt was a passenger in a vehicle being operated by Matthew Blaxton on Hwy. 45 in Columbus, Lowndes County, Mississippi. The vehicle in which Honeycutt was a passenger was struck by a vehicle operated by Coleman at the intersection of U. S. Hwy. 45 and Waverly Road in Lowndes County, Mississippi at 12:38 a.m. [R123]. At the time of the accident, Coleman was employed by the Mississippi Department of Public Safety as a Mississippi State trooper and was operating his highway patrol car.

The area where the accident occurred is a very congested area. Coleman was assigned to Clay County, Mississippi, but on the night of the accident was on his way home from a road block that had been conducted in Lowndes County.

Coleman was headed North on Hwy. 45, which is a through highway. The intersection of Hwy. 45 with Waverly Road is controlled by a flashing yellow light for traffic on Hwy. 45. A flashing yellow light means to use extreme caution crossing the intersection [R 93]. The posted maximum speed at the location of the accident is 35 mph. Coleman testified, and the accident records reveal, that he was going 35 mph at the time of the accident. Prior to the accident, Coleman did not see the vehicle operated by Matthew Blaxton [R92]. A diagram of the accident scene from the Mississippi Highway Patrol Reconstruction Report indicates that Blaxton's vehicle was struck in the right rear by Coleman's vehicle [R134].

The operator of the vehicle in which Plaintiff was a passenger was insured under a policy of automobile liability insurance written by State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company, with liability limits of \$25,000 per person and \$50,000 per accident² [R202]. At the time of the motor vehicle accident, Honeycutt was a minor resident of the household of his parents, Barbara and Bernice (Sam) Honeycutt [R 185]. Honeycutt's parents owned three motor vehicles: a 1991 Chevrolet Geo Prism; a 1998 Ford Mustang; and, a 1988 Ford Aristar van.

²There were multiple individuals who were injured in the accident. Blaxton's liability insurance with State Farm was exhausted paying these claims [R195].

On or about September 15, 1993, Barbara Honeycutt applied for automobile liability insurance through Larry Phebas at the A-1 Insurance Company in Columbus, Mississippi. Atlanta Casualty Insurance Company [Atlanta Casualty] issued automobile insurance policy #03010110 effective for the six month period September 15, 1993 to March 15, 1994 [R159]. Although it has not been produced, it is alleged by Atlanta Casualty that the application for this policy of insurance included a written rejection of uninsured motorist coverage signed by Barbara Honeycutt. On February 10, 1994, Atlanta Casualty issued its renewal certificate for the above policy with an effective date of March 15, 1994, and an expiration date of September 15, 1994 [R160]. On March 21, 1994, Atlanta Casualty purportedly sent a cancellation notice of the above policy of insurance for non-payment of renewal premium by U. S. Mail to Barbara Honeycutt with an effective date of cancellation in the notice for 12:01 a.m., March 31, 1994 [R161].

On March 11, 1994, Honeycutt's father, Sam Honeycutt, made application to American Premier Insurance Company [American Premier] through the A-1 Agency for a policy of automobile liability insurance for the three motor vehicles referred to above [R178]. American Premium is affiliated with Atlanta Casualty. The application for the American Premier policy #05088064 contains a written rejection of uninsured motorist coverage signed by Sam Honeycutt [R178, 248].

At no time was the uninsured motorist coverage rejection on either policy explained to either Barbara or Sam Honeycutt, and neither Barbara nor Sam Honeycutt understood or appreciated the impact of any such rejection of uninsured motorist coverage [R248].

The insurance agent, Larry Phebas, originally testified that it was Barbara Honeycutt, not Sam Honeycutt who signed the application and the uninsured motorist rejection for the American Premier policy for her husband, Sam Honeycutt. However, when it was pointed out to the Insurance Defendants that the rejection had to be signed by the named insured, Mr. Phebas submitted an amended affidavit stating that it was Sam Honeycutt and not his wife, Barbara, who had signed the application and rejection. For purposes of this appeal, Honeycutt does not dispute the fact that the named insured, Bernice (Sam) Honeycutt, is the named insured in the American Premier Policy and signed the application and uninsured motorist rejection.

III. SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Miss. Code Ann. § 83-11-1 requires that every policy of automobile liability insurance written in Mississippi include uninsured motorist coverage. Contained in the statute is the exception to this requirement when the named insured has rejected uninsured motorist insurance in writing. It is the burden of the insurance

company to prove that such a written rejection exists and that the rejection/waiver was knowingly, understandably, and intelligently made.

In Owens v. Mississippi Farm Bureau Casualty Insurance Company, 910 So.2d 1065 (Miss. 2005), the Mississippi Supreme Court confirmed that no statutorily required waiver of uninsured motorist benefits can be effective unless the waiver was obtained from an insured who was reasonably knowledgeable and informed of the costs and benefits of uninsured motorist coverage prior to signing the waiver. Id. 1074 (\P 34). The duty of an agent to explain uninsured motorist coverage prior to obtaining a valid written waiver was recently confirmed by the Court of Appeals in Reid v. Mississippi Farm Bureau Casualty Insurance Company, 2010 WL 5093655 (Miss.Ct.App. March 22, 2011). Through affidavits, the Honeycutts presented evidence that the Insurance Company Defendants did not explain uninsured motorist coverage, and that the Honeycutts never intended to reject uninsured motorist coverage. Owens and Reid clearly confirm the duty of an insurance agent to explain uninsured motorist coverage before the agent can obtain a valid waiver. The evidence created a genuine issue of material fact as to whether the Honeycutts' rejection of statutory coverage was valid.

Atlanta Casualty alleges that it forwarded Barbara Honeycutt by U.S. mail a cancellation notice for non-payment of premium on March 21, 1994, cancellation effective March 31, 1994. Miss. Code Ann. § 83-11-5 requires that insureds receive at least ten (10) days notice of cancellation, where cancellation is for non-payment of premium. The timeliness of the notice is to be determined by the date of receipt. Because the Honeycutts could not have received the cancellation notice from Atlanta Casualty ten (10) days prior to the cancellation date, the cancellation notice of Atlanta Casualty was ineffective.

The trial court granted summary judgment to Defendant Coleman based on the one year statute of limitations in the Mississippi Tort Claims Act (MTCA). The trial court applied the MTCA one year statute of limitations finding, as a matter of law, that Defendant Coleman was acting within the course and scope of his employment with the Mississippi Highway Patrol at the time of the subject accident. In his deposition, Coleman testified that he was not on duty at the time of the collision. He was headed home. There was a genuine issue of material fact which precluded the trial court from finding Coleman was acting within the course and scope of his employment at the time of subject accident.

IV. ARGUMENT

A. STANDARD OF REVIEW

A *de novo* standard of review is used to examine a lower court's grant or denial of summary judgment. *Bowie v. Montfort Jones Mem'l Hosp.*, 861 So. 2d 1037, 1040 (Miss. 2003). The proponent of a summary judgment motion bears the burden of showing that there are no genuine issues of material fact. *Id.* The Supreme Court of Appeals must view all evidence in the light most favorable to the non-moving party. *Id.* at 1041.

Summary judgment is proper only if, "the pleadings, depositions, answers to interrogatories and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if any, show there is no genuine issue as to any material fact." *M.R.C.P.* 56(c). For summary judgment purposes, a fact is "material" if it tends to resolve any of the issues properly raised by the parties. *Glinsey v. Newson*, 911 So. 2d 661, 663 (Miss. App. 2005) (citing *Webb v. Jackson*, 583 So. 2d 946, 949 (Miss. 1991)). When considering a Motion for Summary Judgment, a trial court must view the sources listed above in the light most favorable to the non-moving party. *Id.* (citing *Brown v. Credit Ctr., Inc.*, 444 So. 2d 358, 362 (Miss. 1983)). However, "[i]ssues of fact sufficient to require denial of a Motion for Summary Judgment obviously are present where one party swears to one version of the matter in issue and another

says the opposite." *Titus v. Williams*, 844 So. 2d 459, 464 (Miss. 2003). Also, the moving party has the burden of demonstrating that no genuine issue of material fact exists. *Id.* Furthermore, a Summary Judgment Motion should be denied unless a court finds beyond a reasonable doubt, that the plaintiff would be unable to prove any facts to support his claim. *Rush v. Casino Magic Corp.*, 744 So. 2d 761 (Miss. 1999).

B. ISSUE I

THE CIRCUIT COURT ERRED IN GRANTING SUMMARY JUDGMENT FINDING THAT THERE WAS NO UNINSURED MOTORIST COVERAGE AVAILABLE TO HONEYCUTT.

On February 10, 1994, Atlanta Casualty issued a six month automobile liability insurance policy renewal certificate on policy #03010110 to Barbara Honeycutt with an expiration date of September 15, 1994. The original application for this insurance purportedly contains a rejection of uninsured motorist coverage. According to Atlanta Casualty, the premium was not paid by Barbara Honeycutt, and therefore, on March 21, 1994, Atlanta Casualty alleges that it sent by U. S. Mail a cancellation notice to Barbara Honeycutt on this policy of insurance for non-payment of premium with an effective date of cancellation stated in the notice of March 31, 1994 [R156-167].

On March 11, 1994, Sam Honeycutt made application with American Premier through Larry Phebas of the American Insurance Company and for automobile liability insurance coverage. American Premier is a company affiliated with Atlanta Casualty. The application for this policy of insurance contained a written rejection of uninsured motorist insurance coverage signed by Sam Honeycutt who was the named insured. At the time the above two applications for insurance were taken, uninsured motorist coverage rejection was not explained to either Sam or Barbara Honeycutt. Even if the rejection was explained to them, they did not understand or appreciate the impact of such a rejection [R189-192].

1. By law, insurance companies owe a duty to obtain a knowing and intelligent waiver of uninsured motorist coverage

Pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. §83-11-101, every policy of automobile liability insurance written in Mississippi includes uninsured motorist coverage.

Miss. Code Ann. §83-11-101(2) reads:

No automobile liability insurance policy or contract shall be issued or delivered after January 1, 1980, unless it contains an endorsement or provisions undertaking to pay the insured all sums which he shall be legally entitled to recover as damages for property damage from the owner or operator of an uninsured motor vehicle, within limits which shall be no less than those set forth in the Mississippi Motor Vehicle Safety Responsibility Law, as amended, under provisions approved by the commissioner of insurance; however, at the option of the insured, the uninsured motorist limits may be increased to limits not to exceed those provided in the policy of property damage liability

insurance of the insured or such lesser limits as the insured elects to carry over the minimum requirement set forth by this section. The coverage herein required shall not be applicable where any insured named in the policy shall reject the coverage in writing and provided further, that unless the named insured requests such coverage in writing, such coverage need not be provided in any renewal policy where the named insured had rejected the coverage in connection with a policy previously issued to him by the same insurer.

Pursuant to §83-11-101, the exception to the requirement that each policy of automobile liability insurance includes uninsured motorist coverage is when the named insured has rejected uninsured motorist insurance in writing. It is the Insurance Company Defendants' burden to prove that such a written rejection exists and that it was knowingly, understandably and intelligently made.

Typically, the rejection would be contained in the application for insurance or be contained in another document signed contemporaneously with the application being taken out.

In their Affidavits, the Honeycutts make it clear that they did not understand or appreciate the consequences of the rejection and it was not explained to them by their agent, Larry Phebas. Sam Honeycutt asked for and was told by the agent that they were purchasing "full coverage" and that he "assumed full coverage covered everything" [R214]. Such purported rejections are not valid.

In order for a rejection of uninsured motorist coverage to be effective, such rejection has to be knowingly and intelligently made. *Owens v. Mississippi Farm Bureau Casualty Insurance Company*, 910 So,. 2d 1065, 1074 (Miss. 2005). Both Barbara and Sam Honeycutt have testified that the importance of any such rejection was not understood or known by them. In granting Summary Judgment to the Insurance Company Defendants, the trial court held that "the insurance agent had no legal duty to fully explain to the Honeycutts their right to purchase UM coverage." [R276]. Although in conflict with Mississippi law, this is the position of the Insurance Company Defendants.

Atlanta Casualty and American Premier take the position that neither the policy written by Atlanta Casualty nor the American Premier policy provides uninsured motorist coverage to Honeycutt. Both claim, and the Court accepted, that they did not owe a duty to the Honeycutts to fully explain uninsured motorist coverage. Both claim that since the insurance applications and/or accompanying documents contain uninsured motorist coverage rejections signed by the named insured, that fact alone is sufficient for the Honeycutts to have waived their statutory right to have uninsured motorist coverage included in their policies. This claim of the Insurance Company Defendants and ruling of the trial court is in conflict with *Owens* and is in conflict with the most recent pronouncement by the

Court of Appeals in *Reid v. Mississippi Farm Bureau Casualty Insurance Co.*, 2010 WL 5093655 (Miss.Ct.App. March 22, 2011).

By way of history, in Aetna Casualty and Surety Company v. Berry, 669 So.2d 56 (Miss. 1996), the Mississippi Supreme Court held that an insurance agent had an absolute "statutory" duty to explain the costs, benefits, and risks of purchasing uninsured motorist coverage not less than the statutory minimum "nor in an amount more than the [liability] limits of a particular policy in question." Id. at 76. Misreading Berry, trial courts began to find that, in the absence of a written waiver, insurance companies were strictly liable to provide uninsured motorist coverage up to the amount of liability coverage. This "misreading" of Berry was dismissed by this Court in *United States Fidelity and Guaranty v. Estate of* Francis, 825 So.2d 38 (Miss. 2002). In Estate of Francis, this Court ruled that such an interpretation of Berry would amount to "negligence per se." Id. at 51, (¶ 41). This Court rejected this misinterpretation of Berry, finding that insureds must prove the remaining elements of causation, i.e., that the failure to explain was the proximate cause of the insured not purchasing/raising his uninsured limits up to the limits of liability coverage. Estate of Francis, 825 So.2d at 51, (¶ 41).³ Berry

³ In *Estate of Francis*, this Court found that the Chancery Court properly held that the plaintiff had presented a *prima facie* case against the insurance agent for failure to inform the plaintiff about his right to purchase additional UM coverage above the statutory minimum.

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