IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

CHARLIE HONEYCUTT

VS.

APPELLANT

Cause No. 2010-CA-01470

TOMMY M. COLEMAN, ATLANTA CASUALTY COMPANIES, ATLANTA CASUALTY COMPANY, AND AMERICAN PREMIER INSURANCE COMPANY

APPELLEES

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF LOWNDES COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI

BRIEF OF ATLANTA CASUALTY COMPANIES, ATLANTA CASUALTY COMPANY, AND AMERICAN PREMIER INSURANCE COMPANY, APPELLEES

ORAL ARGUMENT NOT REQUESTED

Thomas Y. Page, MSB **Control** PAGE, KRUGER & HOLLAND, P.A. 10 Canebrake Blvd., Suite 200 P.O. Box 1163 Jackson, MS 39215-1163 (601) 420.0333 (601) 420.0033 – facsimile

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEES

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES	
I. INTRODUCTION1	
II. STATEMENT OF THE CASE	
III. THE FACTS	
IV. SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT9	
V. CONCLUSION	
A. Standard of Review 12	
B. Applicable Law	
C. Legal Argument	
(1) Whether the Uninsured Motorist Coverage Selection or Rejection provision of the policy applications signed by Barbara Honeycutt (Atlanta Casualty Company policy) and Sam Bernice Honeycutt (American Premier policy) were effective and enforceable such that no uninsured motorist coverage was purchased or available on the date of the May 15, 1994 accident.	
(2) Whether the March 21, 1994 Atlanta Casualty 10-day cancellation for non- payment of premium notice was effective on the 10 th day, the 11 th day or on any other day prior to the May 15, 1994 accident.	
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE	

TABLE OF CONTENTS

:

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

CA:	SES
-----	-----

+ -

.

Albert v, Scott's Truck Plaza, 978 So.2d 1264 (Miss. 2008)
Albert v. Scott's Truck Plaza, 978 So.2d 1264 (Miss. 2008)
Booker v. American General Life & Accident Ins. Co., 257 F.Supp. 2d 850 (S.D. Miss. 2024)22,23
Branch v. State Farm Fire and Casuality Compnay, 759 So.3d 430 (Miss. 2000)
Carter v. Union Security Life Ins. Co., 148 F.Supp. 2d 734 (S.D. Miss. 2001)
Cherry v. Anthony, 501 So.2d 416 (Miss. 1987)
Howard v. Citifinancial, Inc., 195 F.Supp.2d 811 (S.D.Miss. 2002)
Hynes v. Ambling Management, 2011 WL 2536189 (Miss.App. June 28, 2011)
<i>Ivison v. Ivison,</i> 761 So.2d 329 (Miss. 2000)
<i>Kendrick v. Quin,</i> 49 So.3d 645 (Miss. App. 2010)
<i>Kimbrough v. Keenum,</i> 2011 WL 1467623 (Miss.App. Apr. 19, 2011) 12
<i>Lott v. Purvis,</i> 2 So.3d 789 (Miss. App. 2009)
O'Meara v. Market Insurance Company, 482 F.2d 1373 (5 th Cir. 1973)

	Owens v. Mississippi Farm Bureau Casualty Insurance Company,		
	910 So.2d 1065 (Miss. 2005)	20,21,22	
:	Patterson v. Tibbs,		
• •	60 So.3d 742 (Miss. 2011)	13	
	Reid v. Stanley v. Mississippi Farm Bureau Casualty,		
	63 So.2d 1238 (Miss. 2011)	22	
	Rainwater v. Lamar Life Ins,		
	207 F.Supp2d 561 (S.D. Miss. 2002)	23	
	OTHER		
•	Mississippi Code Ann. § 83-11-101	vii	
	Mississippi Code Ann. § 83-11-5	18, 22	
	Mississippi Code Ann. § 83-11-3	18, 22	
	M.R.A.P. 34 (a)(3)	vi	

• •

.

·

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT

Appellees submit that oral argument is not necessary to a resolution of the issues on appeal. The issues presented involve application of law to undisputed material facts and documentation; the parties' positions are clear and the record uncomplicated. The facts and legal arguments can be adequately presented in the briefs and appellate record and the decisional process of this Court would not be significantly aided by oral argument. M.R.A.P. 34 (a)(3).

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

(1) Whether the **Uninsured Motorist Coverage Selection or Rejection** provision of the policy applications signed by Barbara Honeycutt (Atlanta Casualty Company policy) and Sam Bernice Honeycutt (American Premier policy) were effective and enforceable such that no uninsured motorist coverage was purchased or available on the date of the May 15, 1994 accident.

(2) Whether the March 21, 1994 Atlanta Casualty 10-day cancellation for non-payment of premium notice was effective on the 10th day, the 11th day or on any other day prior to the May 15, 1994 accident.

(3) Whether the Trial Court properly granted Summary Judgment in Defendants' favor.

I. INTRODUCTION

Charlie Honeycutt was injured in an automobile accident in Lowndes County, Mississippi on May 15, 1994. He was a passenger in a vehicle being driven by Matthew Blaxton when it collided with a Mississippi Highway patrol cruiser driven by MHP Officer Tommy M. Coleman.

Honeycutt quickly advanced his liability claim against Blaxton. In response to multiple liability claims arising out of this accident, Blaxton's insurance carrier, State Farm, filed a Complaint in Interpleader on September 16, 1994 in the Chancery Court of Lowndes County, Mississippi. Honeycutt recovered approximately \$23,000.00 from the Blaxton automobile liability insurance carrier.

Honeycutt did not pursue the uninsured motorist coverage until seven (7) years later when on April 16, 2001 he filed his Complaint against Atlanta Casualty Companies, Atlanta Casualty Company and American Premier Insurance Company demanding \$30,000.00, the stacked gross uninsured motorist benefits arguably available. He also demanded punitive damages for "bad faith.

The Honeycutt Complaint failed to mention his 1994 settlement with Blaxton and State Farm.

Honeycutt's parents are Sam Bernice Honeycutt and Barbara Honeycutt.

On April 16, 2001, Charlie Honeycutt, a resident relative of his parents' / insureds' household, filed his underinsured motorist claims against Atlanta Casualty Company ("Atlanta Casualty") and American Premier Insurance Company ("American Premier"). (C.P. 8-11).

Inasmuch as Atlanta Casualty Companies is a trade name and not an insurer or other

legal entity it will not be further mentioned.

As the overwhelming evidence shows, uninsured motorist coverage was repeatedly rejected in writing when the Honeycutt policy application processes were completed at the local agent's office in Columbus, Mississippi.

The Honeycutt policy with Atlanta Casualty bearing policy number 03010110 effective for the six (6) month period from 9-15-93 to 3-15-94 listed Barbara Honeycutt as the named insured and insured three vehicles: 1991 Chevrolet - 1988 Ford Mustang - 1988 Ford Aerostar. The rejection of UM coverage is properly documented in the application and confirmed in the subsequently issued declarations page of this policy (no UM premiums or coverage) which were provided the insureds. The application includes this form:

Uninsured Motorist Coverage Selection Or Rejection

State law requires that no automobile liability insurance policy be issued or delivered unless it contains an endorsement or provisions undertaking to pay the insured all sums which he shall be legally entitled to recover as damages for bodily injury, death or property damage from the owner or operator of an uninsured motor vehicle and permits any insured named in the policy to select or reject uninsured motorist coverage for this policy and any renewal hereof.

I acknowledge and agree that I have been given the option to purchase uninsured motorist coverage within limits no less than those set forth in the Mississippi Motor Vehicle Safety Responsibility Law and up to an amount not to exceed that provided in the policy of bodily injury liability insurance or to reject the coverage entirely. After having uninsured motorist coverage offered and explained, I have voluntarily and intentionally exercised this option, as indicated below and as shown on the other side of this application. [Emphasis Supplied]

O I select uninsured motorist bodily injury and property damage coverage limits of ____/

O I reject uninsured motorist property damage coverage, but select uninsured

motorist bodily injury coverage limits of _____.

x | reject uninsured motorist coverage in its entirety.

I am authorized to procure automobile liability insurance and to select or reject uninsured motorist coverage for the applicant or any insured.

× <u>Barbara Honeycutt</u> 9-14-93 Signature of Applicant or Insured-Must be of Majority Age

As a result, while this Atlanta Casualty policy provided liability coverage, it did not provide uninsured motorist coverage or medical payments coverage. No premiums were ever charged or collected from Sam Bernice Honeycutt or Barbara Honeycutt for UM coverage.

On 02/10/94, Atlanta Casualty issued its six (6) month Automobile Insurance Policy Renewal Certificate for Policy No. 03010110 with the effective date of renewal to be 03/15/94with an expiration date of 09/15/94.

This Renewal Certificate was cancelled effective March 31, 1994, for non-payment of premium. No renewal premiums were ever paid by the Honeycutts on this Atlanta Casualty policy. No other automobile coverages were in effect after March 31, 1994, through Atlanta Casualty.

On March 11, 1994, Sam Bernice Honeycutt submitted an application for automobile coverage through the A-1 Insurance Agency with American Premier on the same three Honeycutt vehicles insured previously by Atlanta Casualty. In this application Sam Bernice Honeycutt made written rejection of Uninsured Motorist coverage.

Uninsured Motorist Coverage Selection Or Rejection

State law requires that no automobile liability insurance policy be issued or delivered unless it contains an endorsement or provisions undertaking to pay the

insured all sums which he shall be legally entitled to recover as damages for bodily injury, death or property damage from the owner or operator of an uninsured motor vehicle and permits any insured named in the policy to select or reject uninsured motorist coverage for this policy and any renewal hereof.

I acknowledge and agree that I have been given the option to purchase uninsured motorist coverage within limits no less than those set forth in the Mississippi Motor Vehicle Safety Responsibility Law and up to an amount not to exceed that provided in the policy of bodily injury liability insurance or to reject the coverage entirely. After having uninsured motorist coverage offered and explained, I have voluntarily and intentionally exercised this option, as indicated below and as shown on the other side of this application. [Emphasis Supplied]

O I select uninsured motorist bodily injury and property damage coverage limits of $\underline{///}$

O I reject uninsured motorist property damage coverage, but select uninsured motorist bodily injury coverage limits of _____.

x I reject uninsured motorist coverage in its entirety.

I am authorized to procure automobile liability insurance and to select or reject uninsured motorist coverage for the applicant or any insured.

× Bernice Honeycutt 3-11-94 Signature of Applicant or Insured-Must be of Majority Age

American Premier caused its policy of automobile insurance No. 05088064 to be issued

with a one-year effective period of 03/15/94 to 03/15/95.

This American Premier policy provided liability coverage. It did not provide uninsured

motorist coverage or medical payments coverage. No premiums were ever charged or collected

from Sam Bernice Honeycutt or Barbara Honeycutt for UM coverage.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This appeal originated in April 2001 when Charlie Honeycutt filed a complaint against Atlanta Casualty and American Premier for uninsured motorist bodily injury damages arising out of a May 1994 automobile accident. (C.P. 8-11) This complaint alleges that Charlie Honeycutt was entitled to uninsured motorist benefits provided by Atlanta Casualty and American Premier for injuries he received in this accident. (C.P. 8-11) Atlanta Casualty and American Premier answered in a timely fashion, denied all allegations regarding the uninsured motorist claims and asserted certain defenses, including that Sam Bernice Honeycutt and Barbara Honeycutt as Charlie's parents and as the applicants and named insureds in these respective policies had rejected uninsured motorist coverage. (C.P. 12-20)

On October 31, 2008, Atlanta Casualty and American Premier filed their Motion for Summary Judgment. (C.P. 143-181) On December 2, 2008 Charlie Honeycutt filed a Response to Itemization of Facts (C.P. 182-185) and his Response to the Motion for Summary Judgment. (C.P. 185-202) Judge Kitchens entered an Agreed Judgment as to Punitive Damages Claim in favor of Atlanta Casualty and America Premier on March 6, 2009. (C.P. 203-204) On May 5, 2010 Charlie Honeycutt filed a pleading styled "Depositions Submitted in Support of Plaintiff's Response to Motion for Summary Judgment." (C.P. 207-231)

On May 7, 2010 Atlanta Casualty and American Premier filed their Rebuttal Memorandum in Support of Motion for Summary Judgment. (C.P. 233-246) On May 25, 2010 Charlie Honeycutt filed his Memorandum Brief in Opposition to Motion for Summary Judgment. (C.P. 247 -257). On June 4, 2010 Atlanta Casualty and American Premier filed their Reply to Plaintiff's Memorandum Brief. (C.P. 258-273)

On August 5, 2010, the trial court granted summary judgment in favor of Atlanta Casualty and American Premier. (C.P. 273-276). Final Judgment in favor of Atlanta Casualty and American Premier was entered on August 27, 2010. (C.P. 277-278)

FACTS

Sam Bernice Honeycutt and Barbara Honeycutt were lawfully married prior to the birth of Charlie Honeycutt on July 26, 1977.(C.P. 189-190)

On September 15, 1993, as well as on March 11, 1994, and continuing to May 15, 1994, Sam Bernice Honeycutt and Barbara Honeycutt owned three motor vehicles: a 1991 Chevrolet Geo Prizm; a 1988 Ford Mustang; and a 1988 Ford Aerostar Van. (C.P. 156-158)

The Honeycutts were required to list the National Bank of Commerce as a lienholder on their policy and were required to provide comprehensive and collision coverages. (C.P. 159, 162, 164, 167)

The Honeycutt policy with Atlanta Casualty bearing policy number 03010110 effective for the six (6) month period from 9-15-93 to 3-15-94 listed Barbara Honeycutt as the named insured and insured three vehicles: 1991 Chevrolet - 1988 Ford Mustang - 1988 Ford Aerostar. (C.P. 159) The rejection of UM coverage is properly documented in the application and confirmed in the subsequently issued declarations page of this policy (no UM premiums or coverage) which were provided the insureds.(C.P. 159, 270)

Uninsured Motorist Coverage Selection Or Rejection

State law requires that no automobile liability insurance policy be issued or delivered unless it contains an endorsement or provisions undertaking to pay the

6

insured all sums which he shall be legally entitled to recover as damages for bodily injury, death or property damage from the owner or operator of an uninsured motor vehicle and permits any insured named in the policy to select or reject uninsured motorist coverage for this policy and any renewal hereof.

I acknowledge and agree that I have been given the option to purchase uninsured motorist coverage within limits no less than those set forth in the Mississippi Motor Vehicle Safety Responsibility Law and up to an amount not to exceed that provided in the policy of bodily injury liability insurance or to reject the coverage entirely. After having uninsured motorist coverage offered and explained, I have voluntarily and intentionally exercised this option, as indicated below and as shown on the other side of this application. [Emphasis Supplied]

O I select uninsured motorist bodily injury and property damage coverage limits of ____/

O I reject uninsured motorist property damage coverage, but select uninsured motorist bodily injury coverage limits of _____.

x I reject uninsured motorist coverage in its entirety.

I am authorized to procure automobile liability insurance and to select or reject uninsured motorist coverage for the applicant or any insured.

× Barbara Honeycutt 9-14-93 Signature of Applicant or Insured-Must be of Majority Age

As a result, while this Atlanta Casualty policy provided liability coverage, it did not

provide uninsured motorist coverage or medical payments coverage. No premiums were ever

charged or collected from Sam Bernice Honeycutt or Barbara Honeycutt for UM coverage.

On 02/10/94, Atlanta Casualty issued its six (6) month Automobile Insurance Policy

Renewal Certificate for Policy No. 03010110 with the effective date of renewal to be 03/15/94

and the expiration date of 09/15/94.

This Renewal Certificate was cancelled effective March 31, 1994, for non-payment of

premium. No renewal premiums were ever paid by the Honeycutts on this Atlanta Casualty policy. No other automobile coverages were in effect after March 31, 1994, through Atlanta Casualty.

On March 11, 1994, Sam Bernice Honeycutt submitted an application for automobile coverage through the A-1 Insurance Agency with American Premier on the same three Honeycutt vehicles insured previously by Atlanta Casualty. In this application Sam Bernice Honeycutt made written rejection of Uninsured Motorist coverage.

Uninsured Motorist Coverage Selection Or Rejection

State law requires that no automobile liability insurance policy be issued or delivered unless it contains an endorsement or provisions undertaking to pay the insured all sums which he shall be legally entitled to recover as damages for bodily injury, death or property damage from the owner or operator of an uninsured motor vehicle and permits any insured named in the policy to select or reject uninsured motorist coverage for this policy and any renewal hereof.

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